
i 

Strategy Working Committee  
Meeting Agenda - 5 June 2024 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
This meeting will be held in the Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, 62 Texas Street, Martinborough and via 
audio-visual conference, commencing at 9.00am. The meeting will be held in public and will be live-
streamed and will be available to view on our YouTube channel. 

All SWDC meeting minutes and agendas are available on our website: https://swdc.govt.nz/meetings/ 

Membership: Deputy Mayor Melissa Sadler-Futter (Chair), Mayor Martin Connelly, Councillors Aidan 
Ellims, Colin Olds, Alistair Plimmer, Rebecca Gray, Martin Bosley, Pip Maynard, Aaron Woodcock and Kaye 
McAulay, and Violet Edwards (Māori Standing Committee representative). 

A. Open Section

A1. Karakia Timatanga – opening 

A2. Apologies  
A3. Conflicts of interest 

A4. Acknowledgements and tributes 
A5. Public participation 

As per standing order 14.17 no debate or decisions will be made at the meeting 
on issues raised during the forum unless related to items already on the 
agenda. 

A6. Actions from Public participation 
A7. Extraordinary business 
A8. Confirmation of minutes 

Proposed resolution: That the minutes of the Strategy Working Committee 
meetings held on 8 May 2024 are a true and accurate record. 

Pages 1-8 

A9. Matters arising from previous meetings 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCMfhxnFK-riv9KItgv2BwYg/videos
https://swdc.govt.nz/meetings/


ii 

B. Decision Reports from Chief Executive and Staff

B1. Adoption of the Featherston Masterplan and 
Implementation Plan 

Pages 9-45 

C. Information Reports from Chief Executive and Staff

C1. Action Items Pages 46-56 

D. Chairperson Reports

D1. Chairperson’s Report Pages 57-62 

E. Members Reports

E1. Community, Climate and Environmental Wellbeing Portfolio 
Update 

Pages 63-65 

F. Public Excluded Section

F1. Confirmation of public excluded minutes 
Proposed Resolution:  That the public excluded minutes of the 
Strategy Working Committee meeting held on 8 May 2024 are a true 
and correct record. 

(distributed separately) 

F2. Leasing of Greytown old library building – EOI responses and 
assessment Report 

(distributed separately) 

F3. Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade Options Project – 
Final Report 

(distributed separately) 

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local Government 
Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution are as follows: 

Report/General Subject Matter Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to the 
matter 

Ground(s) under 
Section 48(1) for 
the passing of this 
Resolution 

Public excluded minutes 8 May 2024 
(Chief Executive KPIs)  

Good reason to withhold exists under 
section 7(2)(a)   

Section 48(1)(a) 

Leasing of Greytown old library 
building – EOI responses and 
assessment 

Good reason to withhold exists under 
section 7(2)(h) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

Greytown Water Treatment Plant 
Upgrade Options Project – 
Final Report 

Good reason to withhold exists under 
section 7(2)(h) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings 
Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by section 6 or section 7 of that Act which would be 
prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are as follows: 



iii 

Reason for passing this resolution in relation to the matter Ground(s) under Section 
48(1) for the passing of 
this Resolution 

The withholding of the information is necessary to protect the privacy of 
natural persons, including that of deceased natural persons. 

Section 7(2)(a) 

The withholding of information is necessary to enable any local authority 
holding the information to carry out, without prejudice or disadvantage, 
commercial activities.  

section 7(2)(h) 

G. Karakia Whakamutunga – Closing



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness

Strategy Working Committee 
Minutes from 8 May 2024 

Present: Deputy Mayor Melissa Sadler-Futter (Chair), Mayor Martin Connelly, Councillors 
Colin Olds, Kaye McAulay, Alistair Plimmer (from 9:15am), Rebecca Gray (from 
9:05am), Martin Bosley, Pip Maynard, Aaron Woodcock (from 9:02am), and Aidan 
Ellims and Violet Edwards (Māori Standing Commitee Representative) (from 
9:26am). 

In Attendance: Janice Smith (Chief Executive), Stefan Corbett (Group Manager Infrastructure and 
Community Operations), Russell O’Leary (Group Manager Planning and 
Environment), Paul Gardner (Group Manager Corporate Services), Nicki Ansell 
(Acting Manager Stakeholder Relationships), Charly Clarke (Acting Finance 
Manager), Narida Hooper (Pou Māori), Joelle Thomson (Communications Advisor) 
and Amy Andersen (Lead Advisor Democracy & Committees). 

Charles Barker and Adam Mattsen (Wellington Water). 

Public participation: Daphne Geisler. 

Conduct of 
Business: 

This meeting Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, 62 Texas Street, Martinborough, 
and was livestreamed on the Council’s YouTube Channel. The meeting was held in 
public where noted from 9:01am to 11:58am. 

Cr Woodcock arrived at 9:02am. 

Open Section 

A1. Karakia Timatanga - Opening 
Cr Ellims opened the meeting. 

A2. Apologies 
 STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/36) to accept apologies 
from Cr Plimmer, Cr Gray and Ms Edwards for late arrival. 

(Moved Cr Maynard/ Seconded Cr McAulay)    Carried 

1



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

A3. Conflicts of Interest 
 There were no conflicts of interest. 
 
A4. Acknowledgements and tributes 
 Cr Ellims acknowledged the passing of David Harris, a long-time resident of 

Martinborough. 
 

Cr Gray arrived at 9:05am. 
 
A5. Public participation 
 Daphne Geisler spoke to the Committee about her concerns in relation to the 

extraordinary Council meeting held on 24 April 2024. 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:13am. 
The meeting was reconvened at 9:15am. 
Cr Plimmer arrived at 9:15am. 
 

A5. Actions from public participation 
 There were no actions from public participation. 

 Cr Bosley noted that the email he sent to Ms Geisler was not dismissive. 
 
A6. Extraordinary business 
 STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/37) to approve an oral 

members’ report from Mayor Connelly.   
 (Moved Mayor Connelly/No seconder)       Lapsed 

  
A7. Confirmation of minutes 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/38) to confirm that the 
minutes of the Strategy Working Committee meetings held on 3 April, 10 April and 
17 April 2024 are a true and accurate record. 
(Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Cr Gray)       Carried 
Abstained: Mayor Connelly 
Abstained (3 April 2024 only): Cr Woodcock 

 
A8.  Matters arising from previous meetings 
 There were no matters discussed. 
 

B Decision Reports from the Chief Executive and Staff 
 
B1. Updated Three Waters Capital Delivery Plan for FY2023/24 

Mr Corbett spoke to the report, highlighting the reasons for the increases in budget 
and provided explanations for the request. 

 
Ms Edwards arrived at 9:26am. 
 

Mr Corbett responded to queries from members including: communication of issues, 
consideration of option 3, timeframes and deadlines to confirm any budgetary 
issues and the current operational budget position. 
 
Members discussed the work completed across the year and budgets required to 
maintain and replace water infrastructure, the implications of ageing infrastructure 
and the financial challenges this produces to complete programme/project work, 

2



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

and ways to manage this situation in future (proactive meetings/updates on budget 
position through the year). 

 
STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/39) to: 
1. receive the Updated Three Waters Capital Delivery Plan for FY23/24 Report. 

(Moved Cr Ellims / Seconded Cr Plimmer)      Carried 
 

2. agree to increase the FY2023/24 capital investment budget to match the 
forecast in Option 2, an increase of $0.53M bringing the total forecast 
expenditure for FY2023/24 to $4.69M (excluding the actual forecast spend of 
$0.29m against the Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project). 
(Moved Mayor Connelly/Cr Maynard )     Not carried 
For: Cr Maynard, Mayor Connelly, Cr McAulay, Cr Olds 
Against: Cr Gray, Edwards, Cr Plimmer, Cr Ellims, Cr Woodcock, Cr Bosley   
 
Amendment: 
agree to increase the FY2023/24 capital investment budget to match the 
forecast in option 3, an increase of $1.01M bringing the total forecast 
expenditure for FY2023/24 to $5.17M (excluding the actual forecast spend of 
$0.29m against the Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project). 
 

3. agree to increase the FY2023/24 capital investment budget to match the 
forecast in option 3, an increase of $1.01M bringing the total forecast 
expenditure for FY2023/24 to $5.17M (excluding the actual forecast spend of 
$0.29m against the Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project). 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Against Cr Gray)      Carried 
For: Cr Gray, Edwards, Cr McAulay, Cr Bosley, Cr Plimmer,  
Cr Ellims     
Against: Mayor Connelly, Cr Maynard, Cr Olds, Cr Woodcock 
 

4. note that Wellington Water have committed to improve their processes to 
better deliver the capital programme within Council approved budget. 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Plimmer)    Not carried 
For: Cr McAulay, Cr Bosley, Cr Plimmer, Cr Gray 
Against: Cr Olds, Cr Woodcock, Cr Ellims, Cr Maynard, Edwards 
Abstained: Mayor Connelly.      
 
Amendment: 
request that Wellington Water will commit to improve their processes to better 
deliver the capital programme within Council approved budget, and by the end 
of July a report to be prepared and tabled that outlines how we will reset 
expectations and ensure Wellington Watter internal processes for supporting 
forecasting and budgeting. 
 

5. request that Wellington Water will commit to improve their processes to better 
deliver the capital programme within Council approved budget, and by the end 
of July a report to be prepared and tabled that outlines how we will reset 
expectations and ensure Wellington Watter internal processes for supporting 
forecasting and budgeting. 
(Moved Cr Ellims/ Seconded Cr Bosley)    Carried 

 
B2.  Community Wellbeing Fund Amendment 

3



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

Ms Smith spoke to the report and responded to questions including: whether funds 
held would be used for water services and infrastructure, whether there could be a 
reduction of funds held for potential costs. 
 
Members discussed the original purpose of the fund, and support for community 
initiatives and projects. 

 
STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/40) to: 
1. receive the Community Wellbeing Fund Amendment report. 

 
2. approve the ringfencing of $500,000 of Better Off Funding to the Community 

Wellbeing Fund to enable community led projects across the South Wairarapa to 
be considered and approved if appropriate. 

 
3. acknowledge that the remaining funds of circa. $800,000 will be held to fund the 

potential costs arising from the development of the Water Services Plan and 
transition to a Local Waters Done Well solution. 

 
4. delegate approval to the Chief Executive to approve the allocation of the 

funding to ensure that the Council’s legal objectives under Local Waters Done 
Well are met, including the consideration of a Wairarapa water solution. 

 
5. request that the Chief Executive report back to the Committee on the use of the 

funds in due course. 
[Items 1-5 read together] 
(Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Cr Maynard)      Not Carried 
For:  Cr Olds, Cr McAulay, Cr Ellims, Cr Maynard 
Against: Cr Gray, Cr Plimmer, Edwards, Mayor Connelly,  
Cr Woodcock, Cr Bosley. 
 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/41) to: 
1. receive the Community Wellbeing Fund Amendment report. 
 
2. approve the ringfencing of $500,000 of Better Off Funding to the Community 

Wellbeing Fund to enable community led projects across the South Wairarapa 
to be considered and approved if appropriate. 

 
3. acknowledge that the remaining funds of circa. $800,000 will be held to fund 

the potential costs arising from the development of the Water Services Plan and 
transition to a Local Waters Done Well solution only and any unspent funds will 
be returned to the Community Wellbeing Fund. 

 
4. delegate approval to the Chief Executive to approve the allocation of the 

funding to ensure that the Council’s legal objectives under Local Waters Done 
Well are met, including the consideration of a Wairarapa water solution. 

5. request that the Chief Executive report back to the Committee on the use of the 
funds in due course. 
[Items 1-5 read together] 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Gray)    Carried 
For: Cr Olds, Cr McAulay, Cr Maynard, Edwards, Cr Gray,  
Cr Plimmer, Cr Bosley 
Against: Mayor Connelly, Cr Ellims, Cr Woodcock.      

4



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

 
B3. Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and TAB Venues Policy 

Ms Ansell spoke to the report and responded to questions about the Council’s 
previous requests that relate to 6.1 - venue relocation, and the discussions and 
deliberations held by the Wairarapa Policy Working Group. 

  
Action 191: Request confirmation of whether the cap covers each individual district 
or the district as a whole, in relation to the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and 
Standalone TAB Venues Policy. 
 
STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/42) to: 
1. note that a review of the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB 

Venues Policy has been undertaken; 
 

2. note that consultation with the community occurred between 19 February and 
22 March 2024. 

 
3. note that hearings and deliberations were undertaken by the Wairarapa Policy 

Working Group on 15 April 2024. 
[Items 1-3 read together] 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Plimmer)     Carried 
Against: Cr McAulay  
 

4. approve the recommendations from the Wairarapa Policy Working Group: 
 

i) agree to the amendment to clause 6.1 of the Proposed Wairarapa Class 4 
Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues Policy as follows: Clause 6.1 Council 
will not grant consent for a Class 4 venue to permanently re-establish at a 
new site in Masterton District under any circumstances. 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Maynard)   Carried 
 

ii) adopt the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues Policy 
(Attachment 1). 
(Moved Cr Gray/ Seconded Cr Olds)     Not Carried 
For: Cr Olds, Cr Gray, Edwards, Bosley 
Against: Cr Plimmer, Mayor Connelly, Cr Maynard,  
Cr Ellims, Cr Woodcock, Cr McAulay.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:48am. 
The meeting was reconvened at 10:58am. 

 
C  Information Reports from the Chief Executive and Staff 

 
C1.  Chief Executive’s Update 

Ms Smith spoke to the report and responded to members queries including: RMA 
changes, potential impacts in relation to the Wairarapa Combined District Plan. 
(Noted that the hearings will be starting in August 2024 and are scheduled to be 
completed in February 2025). 

 
STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/43) to receive the Chief 
Executive’s Update. 
(Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Cr Bosley)      Carried 

5



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

 
C2. Wairarapa Economic Development Strategy Quarterly Update 

Mr Carrere spoke to matters in the report and responded to questions from 
members including, amount allocated to the WEDS tourism budget. 

 
C3. Action Items 
 Noted that actions 133 and 157 have been closed.  
 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/44) to receive the Action 
Items report.  
(Moved Cr McAulay/Seconded Edwards)     Carried 

 
D Reports from the Chairperson 

 
D1.   Chairperson’s Report 
 Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter spoke to matters in the report. 
 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/45) to: 
1. receive the Chairperson’s Report. 

 
2. approve the amended Terms of Reference for Council and Committees, as per 

Appendix 1, subject to the following change in the CEO Employment Committee 
ToR: consider and/or approve all variations to the Chief Executive’s contract as 
required. 

 
3. note Narida Hooper’s resignation from the Māori Standing Committee. 

 
[Items 1-3 Read together] 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Ellims)     Carried 

 
E Members Reports 

 
E1. Infrastructure Portfolio Update, Cr Ellims 

Cr Ellims spoke to matters included in the report and responded to questions from 
members, including Mr Cantwell’s properties and whether this has been resolved,  
 
Members raised the current roadworks on SH53 (detour on Moroa Road) and 
referred these issues to Mr Corbett for follow up with the Roading Manager for 
further investigation. 

 
Cr Ellims acknowledged Mr Corbett and the Infrastructure and Community 
Operations team for the supplementary report. 

 
STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/46) to receive the 
Infrastructure Portfolio Report. 
(Moved Ms Edwards/Seconded Cr Gray)     Carried 

 
F Appointment Reports 
  
 F1. Wairarapa Trails Action Group – Cr Olds 

Cr Olds spoke to the report and acknowledged James O’Connor for his work with the 
group.  

6



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

 
STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/47) to receive the 
Wairarapa Trails Action Group Appointment Report. 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Ellims)     Carried 

 
G Public Excluded Section 

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local Government 
Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution are as follows: 
 

Report/General Subject Matter Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to the 
matter 

Ground(s) under 
Section 48(1) for 
the passing of this 
Resolution 

Public excluded minutes 10 April 2024 
(Greytown Water Treatment Plant 
Upgrade Options Project  
Report)  

Good reason to withhold exists under  
section 7(2)(h)   

Section 48(1)(a) 

Chief Executive KPIs Good reason to withhold exists under  
section 7(2)(a) 
 

Section 48(1)(a) 

 
This resolution (SWC2024/48) is made in reliance on Section 48(1) of the Local Government Official 
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by section 6 or section 
7 of that Act which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of 
the meeting in public are as follows: 
 

Reason for passing this resolution in relation to the matter Ground(s) under Section 
48(1) for the passing of 
this Resolution 
 

The withholding of the information is necessary to protect the privacy of 
natural persons, including that of deceased natural persons. 
 

Section 7(2)(a)  
 

The withholding of information is necessary to enable any local authority 
holding the information to carry out, without prejudice or disadvantage, 
commercial activities.  
 

section 7(2)(h)  
 

(Moved Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter / Seconded Cr Olds)     Carried 
 
G1. Confirmation of public excluded minutes 

G2. Chief Executives KPIs 
 
H Karakia Whakamutunga - Closing 

Ms Edwards closed the meeting. 
 
The meeting closed at 11:58pm. 
 
Confirmed as a true and correct record 
 

………………………………………..(Chair)  
 

………………………………………..(Date) 
 

7



DISCLAIMER 
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on 
as to their correctness 
 

………………………………………..(Chief Executive)  
 
………………………………………..(Date) 
 
 

8



Strategy Working Committee 

5 June 2024 
Agenda Item: B1 

Adoption of the Featherston Masterplan and Implementation 
Plan 

1. Purpose

The purpose of this report is to seek Strategy Working Committee adoption of the 
Featherston Masterplan and Implementation Plan. 

2. Recommendations

Council Officers recommend that the Committee: 

1. Receive the Adoption of the Featherston Masterplan and Implementation Plan
Report.

2. Adopt the Featherston Masterplan and Implementation Plan.

3. Executive Summary

Deliberations on the Draft Featherston Masterplan took place on 17 April 2024 and at 
this meeting, the Strategy Working Committee requested that the final Draft 
Featherston Masterplan and Implementation Plan be reported back to the Strategy 
Working Committee for final review and adoption at the Committee’s meeting on 5 
June 2024 (Resolution SWC2024/35). 

For more information about the process, please visit our website: 
https://swdc.govt.nz/consultation/featherston-masterplan/ 

4. Appendices

Appendix 1 –Featherston Masterplan and Implementation Plan 
Appendix 2 -Featherston Community Centre to Fitzherbert Street Option 3B (April 
2024) 

Contact Officer: Russell O’Leary, Group Manager, Planning and Regulatory 

Reviewed by: Janice Smith, Chief Executive Officer 

9

https://swdc.govt.nz/meeting/featherston-masterplan-deliberations-17-april-2024/
https://swdc.govt.nz/consultation/featherston-masterplan/


Appendix 1 – Draft Featherston 
Masterplan and Implementation Plan 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



Appendix 2 -Featherston Community 
Centre to Fitzherbert Street Option 3B 
(April 2024) 
 
 

43



Featherston Community Centre to Fitzherbert Street Option 3B (April 2024) 

Costings for preferred access option 

Recent further engagement has been undertaken with landowners regarding the options 
outlined 1a – 3c linking the Featherston community center with Fitzherbert Street. This was 
undertaken with the following landowners: 

34 Fox Street (Medical Centre):  
 

38-40 Fox Street:  

33 Fitzherbert Street:  

 

As a result of consultation 3B become the most likely option as follows: 

 

Fig 1. Option 3b location – pedestrian walkway only 

Option 3b - Pedestrian walkway through medical center to pharmacy. Purchase or create 
an easement.  

Costs 

- Surveying  
o Defining boundaries $2,000 - $5,000. 

- Land Information New Zealand Dealings 

44



o LINZ fees/disbursements $102 per registration.  This is likely to be 
one registration over the three titles.  

- Lawyers  
o Advice on easement $450 - $600 +GST.   
o Preparing Easement Instrument, Registration, signing and certifying 

the dealing $900 -$1,000 +GST 
o Legal advice for other parties.  Hard to say but would expect $500 -

$700 +GST  
o Mortgagee consent.  Sometimes the banks charge for consent 

(approx. $100). 
- Construction Fees 

o Pavers $55,000.00 +GST 
o Lighting including underground cables (bollards lights) $35,000.00 

+GST 
o Signage $10,000.00 +GST 
o Drainage $7,500.00 +GST            
o Allow annual cleaning and power for lighting $5,000.00pa +GST 
o CCTV and landscaping not included. 

Potential cost range $134,552 - $138,002 (including GST) 

 

A second option is to have a two-way vehicle access along the same route as 3b. 

Allowance for 6 m wide vehicle access for Fitzherbert St to medical centre approximately 80m in 
length. 

Costs 

- Surveying  
o Defining boundaries $2,000 - $5,000. 

- Land Information New Zealand Dealings 
o LINZ fees/disbursements $102 per registration.  This is likely to be 

one registration over the three titles.  
- Lawyers  

o Advice on easement $450 - $600 +GST.   
o Preparing Easement Instrument, Registration, signing and certifying 

the dealing $900 -$1,000 +GST 
o Legal advice for other parties.  Hard to say but would expect $500 -

$700 +GST  
o Mortgagee consent.  Sometimes the banks charge for consent 

(approx. $100). 
- Construction 

o Carriageway and surfacing $96,000 
o Construct Kerb and channel $32,000 
o Vehicle crossing @ Fitzherbert St  $7,000 
o Drainage  etc  $8000 
o Pavers $55,000.00 +GST 
o Lighting including underground cables (bollards lights) $35,000.00 

+GST 
o Signage $10,000.00 +GST 

- Potential cost range $247,256 - $250,706 (including GST) 

45



Strategy Working Committee 
 

5 June 2024 
Agenda Item: C1  

Action Items Report  

1. Purpose 

To present the Committee with updates on actions and resolutions.  

2. Executive Summary 

Action items from meetings are presented to the Committee for information.  The 
Chair may ask the Chief Executive for comment and all members may ask the Chief 
Executive for clarification and information through the Chair. 

If the action has been completed between meetings it will be shown as ‘actioned’ for 
one meeting and then will be remain in a master register but no longer reported on.  
Procedural resolutions are not reported on.   

3. Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Action Items to 5 June 2024 

 

Contact Officer: Amy Andersen, Committee Advisor  
Reviewed By: Janice Smith, Chief Executive Officer 

46



 

Appendix 1 – Action Items to  
5 June 2024 

  

47



 

Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

516 27 Oct 21 S Corbett 

Work on a health and safety action plan with the Wairarapa 
Trails Action Group to ensure network safety of the proposed 
trails and continue discussions on cyclist safety on Underhill 
Road leading to the Tauherenikau Cycle Bridge. (ICS) 

Open 

8 Nov 21:  WTAG chairman Greg Lang, Carterton Mayor is having 
discussions with SWDC Mayor on a way forward to resolve this 
problem on both sides of Underhill Road 
20/12/21:  Bridge construction delayed 12-14 weeks (subject to 
weather). 
27/1/22:  Underhill Road will be included as part of the speed 
review, other initiatives will be investigated prior to the bridge 
opening in September.  
9/3/21: Action amended to include advance changing of speed 
limit on Underhill Road. 
20/4/22: Amended - action above deleted. 
06/05/2022: Officers working to make Underhill Road safe 
before opening of bridge.  Funding applied for.  Request to close 
action. 
Check with Stefan 
11/01/22: Action reassigned from A&S to ICS following 
implementation of new committee structure. 
25/01/23: Committee Chair requested update required on 
project, costs for work to be completed, (quote from Pope and 
Gray), how will this be funded; PGF/Ratepayers or other funding 
source. 
1/02/23: Ongoing work to be completed– remains open 
18/07/23: The share the road with cyclists signs have been put in 
on Underhill Road (Greytown and Featherston sides). The 
Underhill Road road edges have been flattened to allow cyclists 
to more easily get off the road if needed. 
20/09/23: Request to examine alternative funding measures, but 
not a priority. 
30/01/24:  no change to priority (ie low). 

407 8 Nov 23 P Gardner For the Committee to look at options for a District Joint 
Committee on Climate Change (CCE) Open 

Noted Cr Gray will follow up initially. 
14/02/24: Cr Gray provided update. No response to date from 
other elected members. Mayor/Deputy to support in promoting 
message. Action remains open. 

48



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

409 8 Nov 23 S Corbett 

Request further information from Council Officers relating to 
the development of a No-Mow Policy, including implications, 
for the South Wairarapa District Council by the next meeting 
of the Committee. 

Open 

30/01/24: no new developments (low priority). 
14/02/24: Cr Gray queried creative ways to progress the no-mow 
policy (e.g. community working group). Noted – bylaw 
restrictions and need a review if changes are proposed. Officers 
suggested a trial on one street. Officers suggested would be 
included in LTP work. Further information required.   
10/04/24: Cr Bosley to discuss next steps with Mr Corbett. 

469 15 Nov 23 S Corbett 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES RESOLVED 
(ICS2023/37) to: 
1.receive the Member’s Report – Transforming the Stella 
Bull/Old Library Building into a Vibrant Community Space: A 
vision for Greytown. 
(Moved Cr Woodcock/Seconded Cr Gray) Carried 
2. Recommend to Council to approve officers investigate short 
term uses of Stella Bull/Old Library Building until June 2024. 
3. Recommend to Council to request officers to develop 
options to be included in the consultation document for the 
24/34 LTP. 
[Items 2-3 read together] 
(Moved Cr Bosley/Seconded Mayor Connelly) Carried 

Open 

22/11/23: Refer to Council resolution: DC2023/171 in relation to 
point 2, which has been actioned.  
Point 3 remain open and to be included in recommendations to 
the Strategy Working Committee. 
30/01/24: James may be able to report back, but the EOI for 
proposed commercial and public use of the Old Library Building 
is online and we are awaiting inquiries.  We will report back in a 
month or so on what we received/learnt.  We would appreciate 
the assistance of Councillors to encourage community and 
companies to express and interest. 
14/02/24: Members provided update on current use on the 
space. Expressions underway. Applications close on 29 February 
2024 at 4pm. Action remains open. 
29/04/24: EOI concluded – operational decision document in 
progress.  Decision will be considered by CE. 
09/05/24: Noted by CE that a decision report to SWC will be 
prepared for 5 June meeting. 
 

32 14 Feb 24 J Smith 

Chief Executive to clarify what is currently included in the 
Speed Review for Dublin Street, Martinborough. Members 
would need to consider any further actions and how that 
would fit within the current roading work programme. 

Open  

33 14 Feb 24 S Corbett 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED  (SWC2024/02) 
to: 
1. Receive the Tauwharenīkau Pipeline Crossing Project 
Report. 
(Moved Cr McAulay/Seconded Cr Maynard) Carried 
2. Adopt Option 3 - Replace existing pipe with recommended 
methodology 

Actioned 29/04/24: Engagement with mana whenua is underway.  Further 
progress and updates will be provided via project reports. 

49



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

 (Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Cr Gray) Carried 
Abstained: Cr Maynard 
3. Release the ring-fenced funds of $150,000 in Annual Plan 
2023/24 for Wellington Water Limited to progress detailed 
design on the replacement of 
the pipe section. 
(Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Cr Gray)  Carried 

37 14 Feb 24 P Gardner 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/06) 
to: 
1. agree to make amendments to the draft Policy: 
(a) to state that Class 4 Gambling Venues cannot relocate in 
Masterton District under any circumstances. 
(b) to state that Class 4 Gambling Venues cannot relocate to 
Carterton and South Wairarapa District’s most deprived areas 
(those on the New Zealand Deprivation Index of decile 9 or 10) 
if the proposed location is outside of a main town centre; 
(c) to state that no new standalone TAB venues may be 
established in the Wairarapa; 
(d) to clearly state that no additional electronic gaming 
machines will be granted consent, in any Class 4 venue in the 
Wairarapa (amendment for clarification purposes); and 
(e) to reflect legislative or other changes since the last review, 
and to improve the flow and readability. 
2. adopt the Statement of Proposal and draft Policy for 
consultation with the community, using the Special 
Consultative Procedure (Attachments One and Two). 
3. delegate authority to the Chief Executive to approve minor 
edits that do not change the intent of the content, prior to 
publication of the Statement of 
Proposal and draft Policy for consultation. 
4. note that a joint review of the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling 
and Standalone TAB 
Venues Policy (the Policy) is underway. 
5. note that the Wairarapa Policy Working Group considered 
options for progressing the review and recommended that the 
Wairarapa District Councils adopt a joint policy for 

Actioned 

14/02/23: MDC have confirmed they received requests as per 
the minutes of the meeting in relation to 6.2  -venue relocation 
concerns. 
24/04/24: Paper to Committee due 8 May.  Action closed. 

50



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

consultation with a regional variation for Masterton in relation 
to venue relocation. 
6. note that consultation with the community is proposed to 
take place between 21 February and 22 March 2024, subject 
to adoption by the three Wairarapa District Councils. 
7. note that the Wairarapa Policy Working Group will hear 
submissions and undertake deliberations ahead of making 
final recommendations to Council in May 2024. 
[Items 1-7 read together] 
(Moved Cr Bosley/Seconded Cr Olds) Carried 
Against: Mayor Connelly 

38 14 Feb 24 J Smith 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/07): 
1.To receive the Pain Estate Update Report. 
(Moved Cr Maynard/Seconded Cr McAulay) Carried 
Foreshadowed amendment: 
2.That the Strategic Working Committee instruct the Chief 
Executive to action the items identified in the Memorandum 
of Agreement for Pain Farm and report back to the 
Martinborough Community Board. 
(Moved Cr Maynard/Seconded Cr McAulay) Carried 
The mover and seconder agreed that the amendment become 
part of the substantive motion. 
3.That the Strategic Working Committee instruct the Chief 
Executive to action the items identified in the Memorandum 
of Agreement for Pain Farm and report back to the 
Martinborough Community Board. 
(Moved Cr Maynard/Seconded Cr McAulay)  Carried 

Open 

26/02/24: Still in progress. 
22/03/24: Due to a later request around the disposal of treated 
wastewater to Pain Farm, this will now be reported to the MCB 
in May 2024. 

134 10 Apr 24 

S Corbett Request information report to a future meeting of the Strategy 
Working Committee regarding flooding issues on Brandon 
Street (refer to Marieke Soeter’s public participation 
presentation to the Committee on 10/04/2024). 

Open 
29/04/24: SLT will be meeting with a WWL stormwater specialist; 
plans to hold an open workshop will be circulated once this has 
occurred. 

135 10 Apr 24 S Corbett 
Request clarification of the levels of service with Wellington 
Water and other relevant contractors in relation to 
drainage/clearing of water ways across the district. 

Open 29/04/24: Officers are currently mapping the assets and 
confirming responsibilities.   

157 17 Apr 24 R O’Leary Officers to continue investigation of access way from 
Featherston Community centre to Fitzherbert Street and car Actioned 08/05/24: Action closed.  

51



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

parking capacity, noting that this will be added to the 
deliberations report for the Enhanced Annual Plan 2024-25, 
scheduled to be heard in May 2024. 

158 17 Apr 24 R O’Leary 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/35) 
to: 
1.receive the Draft Featherston Masterplan Deliberations 
Report. 
(Moved Cr Maynard/Seconded Cr Olds)   Carried 
2.to extend the meeting past 11:02am (as per Standing Order 
4.2 - Meeting Duration). 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Bosley)   Carried 
3.endorse the recommended amendments to the Draft 
Featherston Masterplan as outlined in Table 7 below, including 
the additional amendments; and 
4.request that the final Draft Featherston Masterplan and 
Implementation Plan be reported back to the Strategy 
Working Committee for final review and adoption at the 
Committee’s meeting on 5 June 2024. 
[Items 3 & 4 read together] 
(Moved Cr Gray/ Seconded Cr Olds)    
   
For: Acting Mayor Sadler-Futter, Cr Olds, Cr Maynard, Cr Gray, 
Cr Ellims and Cr Bosley. 
Abstained: Cr Woodcock. 
Against: Cr Plimmer.                                   Carried 6/1 

Actioned 20/05/24: Report due to Committee 5 June. 

188 8 May 24 S Corbett 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/39) 
to: 
1.receive the Updated Three Waters Capital Delivery Plan for 
FY23/24 Report. 
(Moved Cr Ellims / Seconded Cr Plimmer)   Carried 
 
2.agree to increase the FY2023/24 capital investment budget 
to match the forecast in Option 2, an increase of $0.53M 
bringing the total forecast expenditure for FY2023/24 to 
$4.69M (excluding the actual forecast spend of $0.29m against 
the Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project). 

Open Refer to point 5 for open action. 

52



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

(Moved Mayor Connelly/Cr Maynard )  Not carried 
For: Cr Maynard, Mayor Connelly, Cr McAulay, Cr Olds 
Against: Cr Gray, Edwards, Cr Plimmer, Cr Ellims, Cr Woodcock, 
Cr Bosley   
 
Amendment: 
agree to increase the FY2023/24 capital investment budget to 
match the forecast in option 3, an increase of $1.01M bringing 
the total forecast expenditure for FY2023/24 to $5.17M 
(excluding the actual forecast spend of $0.29m against the 
Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project). 
 
3.agree to increase the FY2023/24 capital investment budget 
to match the forecast in option 3, an increase of $1.01M 
bringing the total forecast expenditure for FY2023/24 to 
$5.17M (excluding the actual forecast spend of $0.29m against 
the Greytown Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project). 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Against Cr Gray)   Carried 
For: Cr Gray, Edwards, Cr McAulay, Cr Bosley, Cr Plimmer,  
Cr Ellims     
Against: Mayor Connelly, Cr Maynard, Cr Olds, Cr Woodcock 
 
4. note that Wellington Water have committed to 
improve their processes to better deliver the capital 
programme within Council approved budget. 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Plimmer)   
 Not carried 
For: Cr McAulay, Cr Bosely, Cr Plimmer, Cr Gray 
Against: Cr Olds, Cr Woodcock, Cr Ellims, Cr Maynard, Edwards 
Abstained: Mayor Connelly.    
  
Amendment: 
request that Wellington Water will commit to improve their 
processes to better deliver the capital programme within 
Council approved budget, and by the end of July a report to be 
prepared and tabled that outlines how we will reset 

53



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

expectations and ensure Wellington Watter internal processes 
for supporting forecasting and budgeting. 
 
5.request that Wellington Water will commit to improve their 
processes to better deliver the capital programme within 
Council approved budget, and by the end of July a report to be 
prepared and tabled that outlines how we will reset 
expectations and ensure Wellington Watter internal processes 
for supporting forecasting and budgeting. 
(Moved Cr Ellims/ Seconded Cr Bosley) Carried 

190 8 May 24 P Gardner 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/41) 
to: 
1.receive the Community Wellbeing Fund Amendment report. 
 
2.approve the ringfencing of $500,000 of Better Off Funding to 
the Community Wellbeing Fund to enable community led 
projects across the South Wairarapa to be considered and 
approved if appropriate. 
 
3.acknowledge that the remaining funds of circa. $800,000 will 
be held to fund the potential costs arising from the 
development of the Water Services Plan and transition to a 
Local Waters Done Well solution only and any unspent funds 
will be returned to the Community Wellbeing Fund. 
 
4.delegate approval to the Chief Executive to approve the 
allocation of the funding to ensure that the Council’s legal 
objectives under Local Waters Done Well are met, including 
the consideration of a Wairarapa water solution. 
 
5.request that the Chief Executive report back to the 
Committee on the use of the funds in due course. 
[Items 1-5 read together] 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Gray) Carried 
For: Cr Olds, Cr McAulay, Cr Maynard, Edwards, Cr Gray,  
Cr Plimmer, Cr Bosley 

Open Refer to point 5 for open action 

54



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

Against: Mayor Connelly, Cr Ellims, Cr Woodcock.    

191 8 May 24 P Gardner 

Request confirmation of whether the cap covers each 
individual district or the district as a whole in relation to the 
Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues 
Policy. 

Open  

192 8 May 24 P Gardner 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/42) 
to: 
1.note that a review of the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and 
Standalone TAB Venues Policy has been undertaken. 
 
2.note that consultation with the community occurred 
between 19 February and 22 March 2024. 
 
3.note that hearings and deliberations were undertaken by the 
Wairarapa Policy Working Group on 15 April 2024. 
[Items 1-3 read together] 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Plimmer)  Carried 
Against: Cr McAulay  
 
4.approve the recommendations from the Wairarapa Policy 
Working Group: 
i) agree to the amendment to clause 6.1 of the Proposed 
Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues Policy 
as follows: Clause 6.1 Council will not grant consent for a Class 
4 venue to permanently re-establish at a new site in 
Masterton District under any circumstances. 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Maynard)  Carried 
 
ii) adopt the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB 
Venues Policy (Attachment 1). 
(Moved Cr Gray/ Seconded Cr Olds)  Not Carried 
For: Cr Olds, Cr Gray, Edwards, Cr Bosley 
Against: Cr Plimmer, Mayor Connelly, Cr Maynard,  
Cr Ellims, Cr Woodcock, Cr McAulay.  

Actioned  

55



Number Raised  
Date 

Responsible 
Manager Action or Task details Open Notes 

196 8 May 24 P Gardner 

STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE RESOLVED (SWC2024/45) 
to: 
1. receive the Chairperson’s Report. 
 
2.approve the amended Terms of Reference for Council and 
Committees, as per Appendix 1, subject to the following 
change in the CEO Employment Committee ToR: consider 
and/or approve all variations to the Chief Executive’s contract 
as required. 
 
3.note Narida Hooper’s resignation from the Māori Standing 
Committee. 
 
[Items 1-3 Read together] 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Ellims)  Carried 

Actioned 9/05/24: Updated ToR loaded to SWDC website. 

 

56



Strategy Working Committee 

5 June 2024 
Agenda Item: D1 

Chairperson’s Report 

1. Purpose

To update the Committee on activities and issues; and to seek the Committee’s 
approval for items as outlined in this report. 

2. Recommendations

The Chairperson recommends that the Committee: 

1. Receive the Chairperson’s Report.

2. Approve the appointment of Mark Fenwick to the Māori Standing Committee.

3. Approve the appointment of Karen Mikaera to the Assurance, Risk and Finance
Committee.

4. Approve the appointment of Whitu Karauna as an alternate to the Assurance,
Risk and Finance Committee.

5. Approve the amended Terms of Reference for Council and Committees, as per
Appendix 2.

3. Discussion

3.1 Terms of Reference for Council and Committees  
Since the last amendment to the Terms of Reference for Council and Committees,  
updates have been received from the Māori Standing Committee following their 
meeting on 30 April 2024, as per resolution: MSC 2024/20. The Committee are asked 
to formally approve these recommendations. 

• The Māori Standing Committee recommends to SWDC Mark Fenwick be
appointed as Pae Tū Mōkai O Tauria representive on the Māori Standing
Committee. (Please refer to Appendix 1).

• The Māori Standing Committee recommends to SWDC Karen Mikaera be
appointed to the Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee, and Whitu Karauna
be appointed as the alternate. (Please refer to Appendix 2).

4. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Pae Tū Mōkai O Tauira MSC Nomination Letter, 28 April 2024 
Appendix 2 - Amended Strategy Working Committee Terms of Reference 

Prepared By:  Deputy Mayor Melissa Sadler-Futter 

57

https://swdc.govt.nz/wp-content/uploads/SWDC-Terms-of-Reference-Amended-8May24.pdf
https://swdc.govt.nz/meeting/maori-standing-committee-30-april-2024/


Appendix 1 – Pae Tū Mōkai O Tauira 
MSC Nomination Letter, 28 April 2024  

58



 
 

 
Pae Tū Mōkai O Tauira 
23 North Soldiers Settlement Road 
Featherston 5710 
 
28 April 2024 
 
South Wairarapa District Council 
Māori Standing Committee 
19 Kitchener Street,  
Martinborough 5711 
 
Madam Chair 
It is with great satisfaction that Pae Tū Mōkai O Tauria submits this letter of support for the recently successful 
nomination of Mark Fenwick to represent Pae Tū Mōkai (Featherston) on the Māori Standing Committee. 
 
Mark has much to offer and brings an invaluable skill set to our committee. Mark has been employed at NIWA 
for the last 15 years in the scientific field of Marine Ecology. 
 
We look forward to working alongside Mark and feel confident that Mark’s skill set and experience living and 
working in the Wairarapa will benefit all undertakings going forward. 
 
Nāku noa 
Karen Mikaera 

 
 
 

 
Treasurer 
Pae Tū Mōkai O Tauira 
 
 

 
 

59



Appendix 2 – Amended Strategy 
Working Committee Terms of 
Reference 

 

60



12  

ASSURANCE RISK AND FINANCE COMMITTEE TOR 
 
1. Purpose 

 
• Ensure the strategic overall financial management and performance of the council; and 
• provide independent assurance and assistance on Council’s risk, controls, compliance framework, and 
 its external accountability responsibilities. 

 
2. Key responsibilities 
 

• Quarterly review of the financial position of Council. 
• Review the Council’s financial and non-financial performance against the Long-Term Plan and Annual Plan. 
• Advising and supporting the development of the Annual Plan and the Long-Term Plan. 
• To have a strategic understanding of the Annual Report. 
• Monitor levels of service (KPIs) and performance of the activities. 
• Provide input into planning for engagement and consultation activity with a financial focus or impact.  
• Setting direction and monitoring progress of the risk management framework, and associated procedures for 

effective identification and management of Council’s financial and business risks, including insurance and fraud. 
• Receive and review risk management dashboard reports. 
• Provide input, annually, into the setting of the risk management programme of work. 
• Receive updates on current litigation and legal liabilities. 
• Ensure legal and compliance risks including monitoring Council’s compliance with relevant laws, regulations, and 

associated government policies. 
• Ensure the independence and adequacy of the external audit function. 
• Setting direction and monitoring progress of Council’s emergency response and business continuity planning 

arrangements. 
• .  
• Ensuring the health, safety and well-being responsibilities of Council are well managed (noting the distinct 

responsibilities of the CEO under legislation). 
• The Committee will approve applications to declare land abandoned and any other such matters under the Rating 

Act. 
 
3. Delegated Authority  
 

Power to Act: 
• Approve strategies and plans related to emergency response and business continuity within budgeted limitations. 
• Delegate to members of the Committee and Chief Executive the powers to appoint an Independent Chair, as 

recommendations by the Auditor General. 
• Assess and approve Community & Youth Grants 
• The ability to sub-delegate to Community Boards and the Māori Standing Committee, grants consistent with their 

Terms of Reference. 
 
Power to Recommend to Council: 
• Adoption of the Annual Report. 

 
 
 

61



13  

 
4. Membership and Composition 
  
Chair:   Independent Chair – Bruce Robertson  
Membership: Mayor Martin Connelly, Councillor Colin Olds, Councillor Kaye McAulay, Councillor Aaron 

Woodcock, Councillor Martin Bosley and (Māori Standing Committee representatives – Karen 
Mikaera; Whitu Karauna (Alternate) 

Quorum:  Four Members 
Frequency:   Quarterly. 
 

 

62



Strategy Working Committee 
 

5 June 2024 
Agenda Item:  E1 

Community, Climate and Environmental Wellbeing Portfolio Report 
 

1. Purpose 

To inform members of progress in the Community, Climate, and Environmental 
Wellbeing portfolio, including: 

• attendance at the Te Tai Whanake: Growing a stronger, more resilient 
Aotearoa symposium; 

• Community Wellbeing Fund progress; and 

• Enhanced Annual Plan 2024-25 wrap-up. 

 

2. Discussion 

2.1  Te Tai Whanake: Growing a stronger, more resilient Aotearoa 

This symposium was held at Te Papa on 13th and 14th May and was attended by 
Councillor McAulay and I, as well as our CE Janice Smith. The Resilience to Nature’s 
Challenges was one of the eleven National Science Challenges (NSCs) that were 
established 10 years ago.  The NSCs are multi- and cross-disciplinary programmes 
designed to focus on the biggest science-based challenges facing NZ by bringing 
together scientists and researchers from universities, Crown research institutes, 
businesses and NGO’s to collaborate, share information, cross-pollinate and support 
each other.  

The Resilience to Nature’s Challenges symposium was a showcase of the research 
and mahi that has been achieved over the last 10 years, and a preview of the work 
still to come.  

One of the presenters highlighted that NZ is a dynamic and beautiful place, largely 
because of the chaos here – our position on the boundaries of tectonic plates, in the 
middle of vast oceans, with a wild coastline and a few volcanoes thrown in for good 
measure. This chaos brings unique challenges that often intersect and overlap. Some 
of this is quantifiable data that can be modelled and used to simulate potential 
outcomes in high-risk scenarios and could be of great help when making planning 
decisions. Some of this data becomes insurmountably threatening, for example 
when discussing the outcomes of an earthquake in the Hikurangi Subduction Zone, 
but this is the reality of where we live. There is, according to the latest data, a 25% 
chance that a major earthquake in this zone will occur within the next 50 years, 
resulting in catastrophic damage, tsunami and thousands of lives lost. There is also 

63



the potential for relatively smaller earthquakes that would damage homes, roads, 
buildings, and infrastructure. As insurance premiums rise and become unaffordable 
for many, we need to be able to look to the future and ensure we are doing our best 
to put measures in place now that will give us the best chance of survival and 
recovery, should the worst happen.  

Some of the data presented was more qualitative and focussed on how to work with 
communities and hapu/iwi in collaborative and respectful ways. A particular note 
was that using the term “managed retreat” was, at best, unhelpful. When we 
acknowledge the colonial history of New Zealand, and the forceful removal of mana 
whenua from their land, often in the face of violence and warfare, we can see that 
the word retreat is inappropriate. As we continue down the path of increasing 
change in our climate, and we begin to have difficult conversations about how we 
inhabit this whenua, it is imperative that mana whenua are not only considered, but 
centred in and guiding the discussions. A lot of the information presented stressed 
the importance of early engagement and collaboration, and relationship building 
before disaster strikes.  

Other points of note:  

• The increasing ability of large learning models and AI to manage inconceivably 
large data sets will move the science of prediction forward at a phenomenal rate. 
We can anticipate that this will become increasingly useful for governance and 
planning decisions.  

• Dynamic Adaptive Pathways Planning was discussed and strongly recommended 
as a planning and decision-making tool. Again, this needs to be implemented 
early and could potentially be used as part of our next LTP. 

• Pre-event land use plans could be included as a non-regulatory part of district 
plans and warrant further investigation. These are plans that identify potential 
risks/hazards, mitigation options, resilience, and recovery strategies, and are 
developed before major events in collaboration with councils, communities, 
Māori, and businesses. They come into effect following major events and mean 
that the recovery planning is undertaken proactively rather than during a time of 
disaster and survival. 

This symposium was a privilege to attend. As someone who not only experienced the 
Christchurch earthquakes first hand, but also feels a lot of despair and anxiety about 
the evolving climate crisis, it was reassuring to hear the science and research that is 
happening in the resilience space. We should, as a country, feel incredibly proud of 
the level of knowledge and information that is held here, and we should, as elected 
members, look for opportunities to use it to inform our decision-making wherever 
possible. 

 
2.2  Community Wellbeing Fund: 

The Community Wellbeing Fund subcommittee had its first meeting on the 9th of 
May, led by Lina McManus, our new funding co-ordinator. Lina brings a wealth of 
knowledge and experience to this role, and we were well supported in our 

64



governance discussions in setting the kaupapa for this fund. Although the fund has 
been greatly diminished from the original intended amount, it remains a large 
injection of funds into our community, with the potential to make meaningful 
change at a grassroots level. At time of writing, we anticipate our next meeting on 
the 29th May, with the intention to operationalise the fund as soon as possible. We 
will have a communications plan to make sure that those in the community who 
could benefit from this, hear about it, and feel supported to apply, and we will look 
to all the councillors and community board members to amplify this. 

 

2.3  Enhanced Annual Plan (EAP) 2024-25: 

At time of writing, we have completed the hearings for the EAP, and are awaiting 
deliberations to approve the plan. The decision to move to an enhanced annual plan 
this year instead of a long term plan was initially championed by Cr Olds, and then 
facilitated by Janice Smith. In a time of economic and political uncertainty, this was a 
savvy decision, and the council appreciates this opportunity.  

The community engagement for the EAP has been a success, with an active social 
media campaign largely fronted by Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter. There have been 
numerous face-to-face engagement opportunities for our community members, and 
the consultation document was well-written and formatted. Much of the feedback 
from members of the community has been resoundingly positive, and the 
communications team are to be congratulated. 

I would also like to extend my thanks to the finance team for the enormous amount 
of work that has been done, under a lot of pressure and uncertainty, to produce the 
budget and rates for the 2024-25 plan. This is not a big team, and they work 
exceptionally hard within tight time constraints. Well done, and thank you for your 
work. 

 

Prepared by:  Cr Rebecca Gray - Portfolio Lead for Community, Climate and 
Environmental Wellbeing 

65


	1. Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to seek Strategy Working Committee adoption of the Featherston Masterplan and Implementation Plan.
	2. Recommendations
	3. Executive Summary
	4. Appendices
	C1 SWCActionsReport 5June24.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Appendices

	D1 Chairperson's Report 5 June24.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Recommendations
	3. Discussion
	3.1 Terms of Reference for Council and Committees

	4. Appendices
	SWDC Terms of Reference Amended 20May24.pdf
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. COMMITTEE ESTABLISHMENT
	3. TERMS OF REFERENCE (TOR)
	4. QUORUM
	5. AMBIGUITY AND CONFLICT
	6. CHAIRPERSON / PORTFOLIO LEAD
	7. AGENDA PREVIEW MEETINGS
	COUNCIL TOR
	MĀORI STANDING COMMITTEE TOR
	STRATEGY WORKING COMMITTEE TOR
	ASSURANCE RISK AND FINANCE COMMITTEE TOR
	CEO EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE TOR
	RESOURCE MANAGEMENT HEARINGS PANELS TOR
	DISTRICT LICENSING COMMITTEE TOR
	PORTFOLIOS TOR


	E1 CCEW Portfolio Lead Report 5Jun24.pdf
	1. Purpose
	Prepared by:  Cr Rebecca Gray - Portfolio Lead for Community, Climate and Environmental Wellbeing




